A Look Back in Time

( ! Tie Grand Avenue Fire Station Np. 4, located at 2508 52" Street, is a vacant fistoric fire fiouse that takes up all of its small ot
in a mixed-use neighborhood on Kenosha's northwest side. The fire station is surrounded by other commercial and residential

buildings and by a large open space to the west. It has no landscape features.

3ction 15.04 of the City's Zoning Ordinance establishes standards for designating structures and sites as historic and the site or
structure must meet at least one of the 6 standards. The Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is architecturally and historically
significant under Standards 1 and 3, “exemplifies or reflects the City's cultural...history,” and “embodies the distinguishing
characteristics of an architectural type of specimen...” Architecturally, the Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is a fine example of the
Prairie Style of architecture, unusual in a building of this size and use. The building is also historically significant because it
represents the development and expansion of the City's fire department in the early twentieth century. As the City grew in the
twentieth century, it was important to extend important city services, like fire protection, to expanding neighborhoods. This fire
station was constructed in 1915 to meet this need. The fire
station was originally designated a Kenosha Historic Site in
1985 and re-designated in 1996.

‘ ! Te Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is a two-story
Prairie Style building with a rectangular plan. The

building has a low-pitched hip roof with wide, overhanging

eaves that are undecorated. Projecting from the northwest
corner of the building is a two and one-half story square tower
with a similar hip roof. The red bricK walls of the building are
punctuated with many openings that have been enclosed. On
the second story side walls, the openings are narrow and close

to the roofline. On the main wall, the second story openings

are grouped in a window band and decorated with plain brick_

pilasters. Most of the first story openings are round-arched
and decorated with brick arches. The fire vehicle entrance is in the south elevation and consists of a large, modern garage door. This

opening is decorated with contrasting tan bricks in a pattern that suggests a frontispiece. Surrounding the garage door are tan brick_
pilasters and an elliptical arch. Framing this detail is a rectangular tan bricKk surround topped with a stone lintel that is a sill for the
window band above. This surround is also decorated with two carved stone tiles at the corners. To the east of the vehicle entrance is

the main entrance to the building. It is a tall, narrow door with a transom and round arch that is enclosed.

Il March of 1915, the Kenosha City Council approved the construction of a new fire station on Grand Avenue (now 52" Street).
The Kenosha Lumber Company had donated the site to the City in 1913, but in that year, a new station was built at another

location. In 1915, the City decided to build an identical station on this site. ‘The station plan was Prairie Style design by prominent
local architect, Joseph Lindl. The contract for the building was let to Julius Hoffmann and he completed the building in the fall of

1915. When it was opened, the Grand Avenue Fire Station was fully mechanized with a motor-driven hose and chemical wagon



manufactured and donated by the Thomas Jeffery Company. The Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 was used until after World War

I1, when a new Fire Station No. 4 was constructed further west of this location.

T Kenosha Fire Department developed out of a need for formal fire-fighting services shortly after the community was founded.
Initially, the fire-fighting force consisted of “bucKet brigades” of volunteers that had little effect on early fires. The bucKet
brigades soon developed into a formal fire-fighting engine company that used engines and horse power to fight fires. In 1851, the
Kenosha Fire Department was incorporated with Henry Hinsdale as the first chief. Early fire stations were located in downtown

Kenosha, but eventually the department branched out into the neighborfioods of the city.

ﬂ;cﬁitectum[[y, the Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is significant because it is a good and unusual example of the use of the
rairie Style in a small, utilitarian building. It is also a fine example of an early twentieth century fire station. Although the
Prairie Style was popular in Wisconsin in the early twentieth century, it was more commonly used for residential buildings than for
utilitarian buildings liKe fire stations. The Prairie Style was developed by a group of progressive architects led by Frank Lloyd Wright
in early twentieth century Chicago. Trained by Chicago architects Louis Sullivan and Joseph Silsbee, the Prairie School architects
developed a style that emphasized horizontal lines using low pitched hip or gable roofs with wide overhanging eaves, banded

windows, emphatic belt courses, and natural materials.

Ti& building has the wide overhanging eaves, banded windows, and low-pitched roofline that give this building a horizontal
emphasis that is the hallmark of the style. Because fire stations of the era were typically built with a tall first story to
accommodate the fire vehicle entrance and a second story for fire-fighter quarters, they often were more vertical than horizontal, but
architect Joseph Lindl used typical Prairie Style details to create a horizontal feeling. These details included the placement of second
story openings close to the roofline and a low-pitched hip roof with wide overfanging eaves. Even the tower, which adds to the height
of the building, was positioned toward the back and given a low-pitched roofline to detract from its vertical emphasis. The result is a
building that is both utilitarian and stylish.

( l Tie building is also significant as an example of an historic fire station. In most communities, historic fire stations have almost
all given way to modern replacements. Small, neighborhood stations from the early twentieth century, such as this example, are
important because they illustrate how these fire stations were built during an important period of fire department expansion,

particularly during an era when fire departments were becoming mechanized.

T Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is historically significant because it is one of the few historic resources related to City
government and fire fighting services still extant in Kenosha. Local governmental services were limited during much of the
nineteenth century, but by the early twentieth century, local governments had rapidly expanded to meet the needs of growing City
populations and their growing expectations of City services. ‘The expansion of the fire department into more and more neighborhoods
was one of the results of this growth in local public services and the Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 is an important historic resource

to this era.

comparison of the historic Grand Avenue Fire Station No. 4 and any of the more modern day fire station buildings will
rovide an important history lesson on the evolution of fire stations. You will also notice how advanced the Grand Avenue

Fire Station No. 4 was for it's time period.



